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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY 

UN AME 
HISTORIC 

Cedar Hill 
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Bliss- \-leaver Place r /, . 
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STREET & NUMBER 

Nr. Intersection of Harmony Church and Noble's Mill Rd. 
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Darlington _VICINITY OF 

STATE 
Maryland 
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_DISTRICT 

~UILDING(SI 
_STRUCTURE 

_SITE 

_OBJECT 

OWNERSHIP 

_PUBLIC 

!PRIVATE 

_BOTH 

PUBLIC ACQUISITION 
_IN PROCESS 

_BEING CONSIDERED 

DOWNER OF PROPERTY 
NAME 

Cornelius Bliss 
STREET & NUMBER 

18o6 Harmony Church Road 
CITY. TOWN 

STATUS 

_Yi:iccu Pl ED 

_UNOCCUPIED 

_WORK IN PROGRESS 

ACCESSIBLE 
}.. YES RESTRICTED 

_YES UNRESTRICTED 

_NO 

Darlington - VICINITY OF 

llLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
COURTHOUSE. 
REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC Harford County Cpurthouse 
STREET & NUMBER 

4D South Main Street 
CITY. TOWN 

Bel Air 

D REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS 
TITLE 

DATE 

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT 

First 
COUNTY 

Harford 

PRESENT USE 

~GRICULTURE _MUSEUM 

_COMMERCIAL __ PARK 

_EDUCATIONAL _PRIVATE RESIDENCl 

_ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS 

__ GOVERNMENT 

_INDUSTRIAL 

_MILITARY 

_SCIENTIFIC 

_TRANSPO<HATiON 

_QTHER 
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B DESCRIPTION 

~NDITl~N 

X EXCELLENT ______, ' _DETERIORATED 

_GOOD 

_FAIR 

_ RUINS 

_UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 

AALTERED 

CHECK ONE 

..::;ORIGINAL SITE 

_MOVED DATE ___ _ 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This house was built in four parts, the older two tmits sandwiched between two 1952-
vintage sections. The sections are attached in tandem and face northwards. 

The western section 
This is L-shaped and two story, with frame siding. It measures three bays by two with 
6 X 6 windows. Small attic louvers are inserted in the gable ends of each leg of the 
"L". A door is located on the northern side near the eastern extreme and another is 
along the southern exposure. The roof is on asphalt gable-front with box cornice trim.· 
An interior brick chimney is sited on the roof, near the seam where the two legs of 
the "L'' meet. 

The stone section 
This is two-storied, with wans-or--c-6ursed stone with quoined corners. 'wo belt courses 
run around these walls as well. 'I'his unit is three openings across and two deep, with 
6 X 6 window sashes. Opposite doors ~re on the notthern and southern exposures and are 
nine-pane, with two-light transoms. A one-bay shelter covers the northern portal. The :. 
roof is slate-g>ble flank with very little underlying trim at all. A brick flue is sited 
on the eastern inside-end of this portion of the dwelling. 

The log unit 
Again, this is attached to the wastern end of the stone house. It is one and one-halt 
stories, with walls of stucco-covered logs, resting over a stone cel~ar. The bays 
measure two by two and the window sashes are 9 X 6. A doorway, with a four-pane transom, 
is located on the northern facade. A screened-in porch, quite recent in construction, 
has been added to the northern aspect of this unit. It is probable that the roof was 
raised, for the gabled dormers are inset within the slope of the gable-flank slate 
roof. They have 3 X 6 window sashes. There are two brick inside-end cimneys on the 
eastern and western extreme•, the eastern one having been replaced. 

The kitchen 
This addition was constructed at the same time as the L-shaped wing. It is composed of 
frame siding and is one bay by two with 6 X 6 windows. A ground-level entryway is located 
on the southern extreme. The roof is an asphalt gable-flank. . · 

The interior 
The log section contains both chair rails and exposed beaded beams and wall trim. Brick' 
fireplaces are located at either end, and a circular stairwell is positioned in the 
northwest corner of the house. The stone section has the original flooring, cherry 
banisters and original hardware. A thru-hall connects the doors and a fireplace is 
built into the far western wall. The oi2Qlar under the log unit was the original kitchen, 
and it still retains the old log beams and a covered over hearth. 

An old stone tenant house once stood on the property, but this has since been razed. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



II SIGNIFICANCE 
I ·-' / 

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW 

_PREHISTORIC -.ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC _COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE _REL,GION 

_1400-1499 -.ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _CONSERVATION _LAW _SCIENCE 

_ 1500-1599 -,:AGRICULTUR~ _ECONOMICS _LITERATURE _SCULPTURE 

_ 1600-1699 -.ARCHITECTURE _EDUCATION _MILITARY _SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN 

X1100-1799 -.ART _ENGINEERING _MUSIC _THEATER 

X 1800-1899 -COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT _PHILOSOPHY _TRANSPORTATION 

_1900- _COMMUNICATIONS _INDUSTRY _POLITICS/GOVERNMENT _OTHER (SPECIFY) 

_INVENTION 

SPECIFIC DATES BUI LDEA/ ARCHITECT 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

· The farm on which this house is located has also been known by the nav.e of Evergreen. 
Part of it include• a very old section of a tract called Hall's Rich Neck, patented in 
1699 by Thomas Hall. In 1748, Col. Thomas White ptt*'chased 510 acres of this tract. The 
1783 Tax List gives the following divisions of the tracts that probably are encompassed 
by this farm: 

Margaret's Mount Hall's Rich Neck 
William Wilson 14o acres Thomas Hall, Jr. 652 acres 
Freeborn Brown 120 acres James Clark 35 acres 
Samuel Bailus 200 acres Wiadmill Hill William Cox 100 acres Thomas Hall, Jr. 100 Richard Hawkins 72 acres acres 

The oldest part of the structure, the log section, was built in the late 1700's, according 
to the FedeJ?al Tax List, and cpuld have been constructed by either Wilson, Hawkins or 
Hall from the orevious list. The stone sevtion is peculiar to a style that would put iu 
in the 1830-1860 bracket. This further improvemBBt might have occurred under it's owner­
ship by the Stumps. The 1878 Martenet Map lists the owner as being William Hopkins, althoug} 
he did not obtain the land until 1883 • 

. . . 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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II!JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 95 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

This property is located northwest of the intersection of Noble's Mill and Harmony Church 
roads, the southern and eastern borders also being along these thoroughfares. 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STA.TE COUNTY 

STATE COUNTY 

mFORM PREPARED BY 
NAME I TITLE 

Paul L. Penrod/ site surveyor 
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Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 
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TITLE SEARCH 

In 1952, Cornelius N. Bliss acquired 95 acres from The Pennsylvania 
Company for Banking and Trust. 

In 1949, Amelia D. Lurrnan sold 96.74 acres to the previous deed's 
grantors. 

H. Elizabeth Esley conveyed the tract to Theodore G. Lurman,,Jr. in 
1948. 

In 1936, Dudley A. Bragdon conveyed t}:J4l_ property to Theodore G. Lunnan, Jr. 

In 1931, Benjamin A. Weaver sold the parcel to Dudley A. Bragdon. 

W. Worthington Hopkins received 132 acres from Benjamin A. Weaver.5.n 1925. 

Lulu Clark sold 18~ acres and 34 perches to Benjamin A. Weaver in 1919. 

Ida E. Hopkins sold the parcel to Lulu Choate. 

In 1912, William Hopkins bequeathed the land to Ida E. Hopkins. 

Frederick Stump sold 18o;'2 acres and 34 perches, ealled Evergreen, to 
William J. Hopkins in 1883. 

William H. Stump left the property to Frederick Stump in 1865. William 
had go~ten the property from Thomas C. Stump. 

In 1839, Thomas C. Stump acquired Hall's Rich Neck from John H. Price. 

In 1830, Samuel Bradford, trustee, conveyed 90 acres to Robert Parker. 

William F. Miller acquired the property from John Wilson iti 1813. The 
parcel included parts of Margaret's Mount, Hall's Rich Neck and Wind­
mill Hill and consisted of 96 acres. 

l.In 1805, William Wilson conveyed 3'1A acres to John Wilson. 

In 18oo, Samuel Wilson sold William Wilson 160 acres. 

In 1798, William Wilson transferred the property to Samuel Wilson. 

Samuel Litton conveyed the acreage to William Wilson in 1783. 

Samuel Litton acquired the property from John Cooley in 178o. 

2.In lBoo, Joseph Miller sold 54 acres of Hall's Rich Neck to John Wilson. 
The tract was willed to Thomas Hall by Col. rliomas White. 

3:In 18oo, Richard Hawkins sold 8o acres of Margaret's Mount to William 
Wilson. 

In 1780, Robert Hawkins conveyed 80 acres to Richard Hawkins. 

In 1777, Robert conveyed a further parcel to Ricllhrd Hawkins. '!'hirty acres 
came from Richard Wells in 1730 and 100 came from John Miles in 1716. 



Libre Folio --
~--- JLG p 469 4.In 1801, Thomas Hall sold William Wilson ten acres of Hall's Rich Neck, 

conveyed to Thomas Hall by Col. Thomas White. 

JLG I 214 5. In 1790, John Cooley conveyed Bo acres of Margaret's Mount to William 
Wilson. 

JLG D 136 In 1781, John Cooley received the plot from Richard Hawkins. 

JLG c 1 In 1779, Ezekiel Van Horn conveyed 50 acres to John Cooley 
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ELECTION DISTRICT 

TAX MAP NO. 

REMODELING: Drastic, moderate, minor PARCEL NO. 
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Darlington, MD 
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Darlington, MD 
Paul Penrod 3/76 
North 



SUMMARY 

HA-157 
iiliss Tenant House 
Harmony Church Road 

The concept of building into a hillside is common in this county 
and should be considered an important regional characteristic. This 
small stone tenant house is such an example and it further exemplifies 
the common plan of a double entrance which many associate with Germanic 
influence. 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
HA-157 

MAGI 1!1301575904 

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY 

HISTORIC 

AND/OR COMMON 

Stone Tenant House 

flLOCATION 
STREET & NUMBER 

Harmony Church Road 
CITY. TOWN 

STATE 

DcLASSIFICATION 

CATEGORY 

_DISTRICT 

~UILDING!S) 
_STRUCTURE 

_SITE 

_OBJECT 

OWNERSHIP 

_PUBLIC 

i&RIVATE 

_BOTH 

PUBLIC ACQUISITION 

_IN PROCESS 

_BEING CONSIDERED 

DOWNER OF PROPERTY 
NAME 

CAJ Haakasson and Caj Harkansson 
STREET & NUMBER 

1806 Nobles Mill Road 

VICINITY OF 

STATUS 

itc,CCUPIED 

_UNOCCUPIED 

_WORK IN PROGRESS 

j\CCESSIBLE 
YvES RESTRICTED 

_YES: UNRESTRICTED 

_NO 

CITY. TOWN 

Darlington X v1c•N1TY OF Glenville 

llLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
COURTHOUSE. 
REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC Harford County Courthouse 
STREET & NUMBER 

40 South Main Street 
C:TY. TQWN 

Bel Air 

11 REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS 
TITLE 

DATE 

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT 

COUNTY 

PRESENT USE 

_AGRICULTURE _MUSEUM 

_COMMERCIAL _PARK 

_EDUCATIONAL ~RIVATE RESIDENCE 

_ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS 

_GOVERNMENT _SCIENTIFiC 

_INDUSTRIAL 

_MILITARY 

_TRANSPORTATION 

_OTHER 

Telephone #: 734-6626 
-------

STATE' zip code 
Maryland 2103Zi. 

Liber :r: 997 
Folio #: 1001 

STATE 
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-, 
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II DESCRIPTION 

_EXCELLENT 

~GOOD 
_FAIR 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 

_RUINS 

_ UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 

~LTERED 

CHECK ONE 

~RIGINAL SITE 

_MOVED DATE __ _ 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

EXTERIOR: 

The dwelling faces south; it is a three level stone bank-house standing about ten yards 
north of Hannony Church Road. It is not large; being only four short bays wide and one 
wide bay deep with measurements of 24' along the south (main) facade and 18' in depth. 

The fenestration is syrmnetrical although not regular. On the main level for instance 
the principal facade (south) is vented by a 6/6 sash window in the outer two bays and 
doorways in the inner bays. The east and west bays are blind and in its original state 
the north side was opened up by two windows directly opposite those of the south wall. 

The walls are made of brownish fieldstone (gneiss) and appear to have never had any 
exterior covering except of the south facade where evidence of whitewash suggests an 
earlier and larger single story porch. 

The roof, which may not be original, has gable-ends with its ridge running east to 
west. 

There are corbelled brick chimney caps on each end having the appearance of serving 
interior chimneys. The west cap is decorative; however, there is no fireplace chimney 
on that end. At attic level it can be noticed that the stone wall below the cap is hollow, 
for some as yet unexplained reason, but there is no evidence of smoke within. On the 
other end, however, there is a chimney 3'4" wide that projects into the rooms 2' and 
served fireplaces on each level. 

The east door of the main facade has been blocked in, the porch replaced and a recr-+ 
three level frame addition that wraps around the east and north sides alter the origi. 
exterior. 

INTERIOR: 

At least two major renovations have altered the interior in its original state. The 
three level plan provides for a kitchen in the bottom level, a living space above and a 
bedroom above that. The attic is finished with plaster and is accessible by stairs like 
those of the other levels. 

Basement: 
While there is evidence of a double entrance on the south facade and evidentally the 

house was once used as a duplex, the first level suggests that this was originally a single 
family dwelling with a basement kitchen. It is the north facade of this level that 
provides the many other entrances to the building and this is a single door located in 
the western most bay. 

In the room one sees a single stone fireplace at the east end of the room. It is a 
fairly large fireplace with a 45" square opening. It is lighted by a window near the 
fireplace in the north wall and only one other window in the middle of the west wall. 
These windows have the same heavy lintels of the other openings and it should be noted 
that if this building was a duplex having a fireplace at each end, this window could not 
have existed. 

There is evidence of an earlier door behind the present stairs in the northeast corner. 
Its lintel; however, was a hewn 3"x51" jack-arch and not the heavy stone seen elsewhe· 
in the house and therefore may be considered an early alteration. Its presence does . .se 
a question about the history of the present stairs while these stairs are modern, their 
placement seem original (based on the two stories above) however, the closed-off door in 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
(Continued) 
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_PREHISTORIC 

_1400-1499 

_1500-1599 

- 160-0-1699 

_ip-1799 

Yieoo-1099 

_1900-

_J,.RCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC 

_j,.RCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC 

_j,.GRICULTURI; 

~RCHITECTURE 
_J,.RT 

_COMMERCE 

_COMMUNICATIONS 

SPECIFIC DATES 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

_COMMUNITY PLANNING 

_CONSERVATION 

_ECONOMICS 

_EDUCATION 

_ENGINEERING 

_EXPLORA Tl ON/SETTLEMENT 

_INDUSTRY 

_INVENTION 

_LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

_LAW 

_LITERATUR
0

E 

_MILITARY 

_MUSIC 

_PHILOSOPHY 

_POLITI CS/GOVERNMENT 

BUILDER/ ARCHITECT 

_RELIGION 

_SCIENCE 

_SCULPTURE 

_SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN 

_THEATER 

_TRANSPORTATION 

_OTHER !SPECIFY! 

The full gamitof 19th Century American architectural style is represented in this 
area as well as a considerable number of 18 Century buildings. While the physical 
characteristics of this environment are valuable, literally, as being part of the 
ever-disappearing original American fabric it should not be overlooked that structures 
such as this are an integral part of an historic landscape of which this county should 
be possessive. Every demolition of a pre-modern farm building represents a loss of the 
kind of visual document necessary for the as yet incomplete history of a traditionally 
apparent culture. 

A tenant house such as this one being built out of local materials and utilizing a 
plan peculiar to the topography says a good deal about past life in this area. It is a 
positive contribution to the picturesque character of Deer Creek. 
- The concept of building into a hillside site and placing the kitchen in the basement 

the building is COT11110n in this county and should be considered an important regional 
cnaracteristic. 

This small stone tenant house is such an example and it further ex~mplifies the corrmon 
plan of a double entrance which many associate with Germanic influence. 
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DESCRIPTION (Cont.) 

Basement (Continued: 

BLISS TENANT HOUSE 
HA-157 

this location suggests that for one period the stairs at least had a different direction if 
not another location. 

With the floors having been replaced it is difficult to tell if the original ceiling although 
other buildings in the area suggest that it might have had exposed joists and been whitewashed 
like the walls. The present ceiling height is 7'2 11

• 

2ND LEVEL: 
This level was and is the main living area. The double entrance and evidence of a partition 

since the floor was replaced suggest that there may have been a transoerse wall dividing the 
area in half. The custom of a segregated formal parlor is seen in this area. 

UPPER LEVEL: 
Enclosed windows lead to the second level and provide for closet space. There was a single 

bedroom upstairs reflecting the same layout and fenestration as below including windows in the 
northeast corner to the attic. 

In the attic one sees that the gable ends were plastered and painted but the roof framing 
has been left exposed. The floors are 13 11 random width laid with cut mails. The rafters are a 
r!Jjxture of sawi and hewn materials with many being undressed walnut tree rafters. These are 

~ered at the ridge and fixed both there and at the joist ends with cut nails. 
The area was lighted by pairs of casement windows at each end. 

HISTORY: 

The examination of maps, deeds, wills, etc. is not as fruitful for this building as it is in 
most cases. Even though its plan, materials and construction tec~niques suggest a building that 
is surviving from at least the 1870's (if not much earlier) it fails to appear in the standard 
sources. This building is not indicated by either the Jennings & Herrick Map of 1858 or the 
Martenet Map of 1878. In fact, it is not represented by even the latest U.S.G.S. Map. Further­
more, the title search for this parcel suggests that it has been a part of HA-156 (Cedar Hill 
or Evergreen) at least since the early 19th Century, but the presence of a building is never 
indicated by the records. 

What is known is that ownership dates back to the Stump family in the 1880's, a period in which 
the building was surely standing. Stump ownership is continuous from that time until willed 
back into the Federal era. Deed HD Z/323 & 4 (September 19, 1816) shows Thomas C. Stump acquir­
ing two acres of 11 Duckets Stump" adjoining Wm. Worthington and "The River" (Susquehanna?) at 
this time. A check of Thomas C. Stump as grantee for 1816-1840's shows many transactions 
including almost as many cases of him being the granter. Many, if not all of these transactions 
however, are in the Deer Creek area and establish the presence of Stumps from an early date. 
Most curious among these dealings is the reference acquired by chain of title to HD 23/356 
(October 14, 1839) in which Thomas C. Stump acquires via publick sale 90 Acres on the south side 
of Deer Creek. Deed 15/131 (December 1863), suggests that the land "on the road from Govers Mills 
to Windmill Hill" was inherited from Thomas C. Stump by his children. It can only be concluded 

·t if this building predates the Civil War (which it most likely does) that it is of the 
~~ump 11 era. Thomas C. Stump left no will. The inventory of his estate lists slaves, a large 

number of household articles, but no mention of real estate. 
We have a building here that is typical in plan and construction in Harford County prior 

to the Civil War which stands on land owned by Stumps. This fact is not presented in an effort 
to reinforce any hiarchy of names so much as it helps to demonstrate how certain areas of 

-2-



.5TORY (Cont. ) 

BLISS TENANT HOUSE 
HA-157 

Harford County came to develop as they did and why we have 19th Century buildings standing 
where they do. 
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997 /1001 

383/470 

327/126 

314/500 

239/488 

221/240 

164/357 

162/272 

48/7 

15/131 

BLISS TENANT HOUSE 

Title Search 

HA-157 

Apri 1 30, 1976 

March 1948 

April 30, 1948 

March 4, 1936 

October 15, 1931 

June 28, 1919 

May 18, 1883 

December 18, 1863 

Grantor: Cornelius Bliss 
Grantee: H. Isaacs & C. Harkansson 
Acreage: 96.18 Acres bordered by Hannony Church 

Road, Nobles Mill Road and Deer Creek 

Granter: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

Gran tor: 
Grantee: 

Granter: 
Grantee: 

Granter: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

Gran tor: 
Grantee: 

Grantor: 
Grantee: 

Gran tor: 

Grantee: 
Acreage: 

Grantor: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

Gran tor: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

Pennsylvania Co., for Banking & Trusts 
Cornelius Bliss 
(1) 327/126 
(2) 333/272 
.785 Acres surveyed March & May 1937 
for Lloyd Weaver 

Amelia D. Lurman 
Pennsylvania Company 

H. Elizabeth Esley 
Theodore & Amelia Lunnan 

Dudley Bragden 
Theodore & Amelia Lurman 
103 Acres with two exceptions 

Benjamin A. Weaver and wife 
Dudley Bragden 

Lula Choate 
Benjamin Weaver 

Worthington Hopkins & Ida E. Hopkins, 
et al 

Lula Choate, et al 
(1) one Acre 
(2) 182 Acres adjoining 

Frederick Stump 
William J. Hopkins 
part of a tract called 11 Evergreen 11 

via Will of William Henry Stump 

Frederick P. Stump, et al 
William Henry Stump 
300 Acres bordering on Deer Creek, 
the "road leading from Govers Mills 
to Wi ndmi 11 Hi 11 11 and the 1 ands of 
Wm. Ross, Govers Mills, Wm. Hopkins 
and Rich Holloway 

-1 and decended to them from Thomas C. 
Stump, father cf Mary and William 
Hopkins 



HD 23/356 

6/399 

6/459 

8/101 

10/184 

l 0/188 

HD z/323 

BLISS TENANT HOUSE 
Title Search (Cont.) 

HA-157 

October 14, 1839 Granter: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

December l, 1820 Gran tor: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 

September l, 1824 

October 3, 1826 

September 19, 1816 

-2-

Jon H. Price 
Thomas C. Stump 
90 Acres at public sale on south side 
of Deer Creek called Halls Rich Neck; 
adjoining Elisha Cook; same land as 
purchased by Robert Parker, Jr. from 
Samuel Bradford 

Roman Catholic Church 
Thomas c. Stump 
on Deer Creek near chapel - 25 Acres 
of Arabia Petra 

More church dealings 

Thomas C. Stump in village of 
Darlington 

Another 36 Acres of Arabia Petra 

32 Acres Arabia Petra 

Thomas C. Stump acquired 20 Acres of 
11 Durkits Stump" 
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Stone Temant House HA- 157 
Glenville , Md. 
Wayne Nield 10/1981 

South elevation 
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